
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Barbican Centre Board 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 18 MAY 2022 

Time: 11.00 am 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Tobi Adebekun (External Member) 

Munsur Ali 
Deputy Randall Anderson 
Stephen Bediako (External Member) 
Farmida Bi (External Member) 
Tijs Broeke 
Russ Carr (External Member) 
Zulum Elumogo (External Member) 
Alderman David Graves 
Gerard Grech (External Member) 
Deputy Ann Holmes 
Wendy Hyde 
Deputy Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Deputy Graham Packham 
Mark Page (External Member) 
Jens Riegelsberger (External Member) 
Jane Roscoe (External Member) 
Alderman Sir William Russell 
Tom Sleigh 
Irem Yerdelen 
 

Enquiries: Ben Dunleavy 
ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting via YouTube at the following 

link: 
https://youtu.be/MXpQi7wi0mI    

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of 
the public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: online meeting recordings do 
not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on 
the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of 

the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.  

John Barradell 
Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/MXpQi7wi0mI


 

 

AGENDA 
 
A number of items on the agenda will be marked with a star (*). These are papers that it is 
proposed are approved or noted without discussion. They may have already been 
considered by the Board’s Finance and/or Risk Committees. Any Member is able to request 
that an item be unstarred and subject to discussion; Members are asked to inform the Town 
Clerk or Chair of this request prior to the meeting. 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 

 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 
 

3. ORDER OF THE COURT 
 To receive the Order of the Court of Common Council dated 21 April 2022 appointing 

the Board and setting its Terms of Reference. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
4. ELECTION OF A CHAIR 
 To elect a Chair in accordance with Standing Order 29. 

 
 For Decision 
  

 
5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRS 
 To elect one Deputy Chair (Member) in accordance with Standing Order 30 and one 

Deputy Chair (external) in accordance with a convention adopted by the Board on 24 
March 2021. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
6. MINUTES 
 To approve the public note of inquorate meeting and non-public summary of the 

Barbican Centre Board meeting held on 17 February 2022.  
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 9 - 12) 

 
7. APPOINTMENT OF SUB-COMMITTEES 2022/23 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 13 - 16) 

 



 

3 
 

8. GOVERNANCE UPDATE 
 Report of the Town Clerk (to follow). 

 
 For Discussion 
  

 
9. MANAGEMENT REPORT BY THE CENTRE'S DIRECTORS 
 Report of the Chief Operating & Financial Officer. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 17 - 26) 

 
10. *CWP PROJECTS AND CAPITAL UPDATE 
 Report of the Director of Operations and Buildings. 

 
 For Information 
  

 
11. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 

 
 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 

 
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 

excluded from the meeting for the following items, on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of Exempt Information, as defined in Part 1, of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 

 
14. NON-PUBLIC BOARD MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public note of inquorate meeting of the Barbican Centre Board 

meeting held on 17 February 2022. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 27 - 28) 

 
15. ARTISTIC PROGRAMMING STRATEGY UPDATE 
 Report of the Artistic Director. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 29 - 46) 

 
 



 

 

16. DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
 Report of the Director of Development. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 47 - 58) 

 
17. BARBICAN CENTRE - ARTS COUNCIL ENGLAND, BARBICAN NATIONAL 

PORTFOLIO EXTENSION YEAR 2022/23 AND 2023-26 APPLICATION. 
 Report of the Artistic Director. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 59 - 66) 

 
18. EDI AND HR AUDIT UPDATE 
 Report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 67 - 80) 

 
19. BARBICAN BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE 
 Report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 81 - 88) 

 
20. BARBICAN BUSINESS REVIEW 
 Report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 89 - 96) 

 
21. BARBICAN RENEWAL - UPDATE 
 Report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 97 - 102) 

 
22. CUSTOMER SATISFACTION MEASUREMENT - MYSTERY SHOPPER SUMMARY 
 Report of the Director of Operations and Buildings. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 103 - 106) 

 
23. *RISK UPDATE 
 Report of the Director of Operations and Buildings. 

 
 For Information 
  

 
24. *CONTROVERSIAL RISK UPDATE 
 Report of the Artistic Director. 
 For Information 



 

5 
 

  
 

25. *REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 

 
 For Information 
  

 
26. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 

 
 

27. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 

 
 

Part 3 - Confidential agenda 
 
28. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES 
 To agree the confidential note of inquorate meeting of the Barbican Centre Board 

meeting held on 17 February 2022. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
29. BARBICAN TOM UPDATE 
 Report of the CEO, Barbican Centre. 

 
 For Decision 
  

 
30. PROCUREMENT BREACH WAIVER REPORT 
 Report of the Joint Interim Managing Directors. 

 
 For Decision 
  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



KEAVENY, Mayor RESOLVED: That the Court of Common 
Council holden in the Guildhall of the City of 
London on Thursday 21st April 2022, doth 
hereby appoint the following Committee until 
the first meeting of the Court in April, 2023. 

 
BARBICAN CENTRE BOARD 

 
1. Constitution 

A Non-Ward Committee consisting of, 

• eight Members elected by the Court of Common Council for three-year terms, at least one of whom shall have fewer 
than five years’ service on the Court at the time of their appointment.  

• Up to nine non-Common Council representatives appointed by the Committee, of which at least two should be drawn 
from the arts world 

• a representative of the Policy & Resources Committee  

• a representative of the Finance Committee  

• the Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama (ex-officio) 

• the Chairman of the Barbican Centre Trust (ex-officio) 

• the Chairman of the Culture, Heritage & Libraries Committee (ex-officio) 
 
The Chairman of the Board shall be elected from the City Corporation Members. 
 
The Board shall also elect a second Deputy Chairman, appointed from the External Membership of the Board. 
 
There is a maximum service limit of nine years, which shall apply to all Members (including ex-officio).1 

 
2. Quorum  

The quorum consists of any five Members, provided Common Councilmen are in the majority. 
 
3. Membership 2022/23 

   

3 (3) Munsur Ali 

3 (3) Randall Keith Anderson 

3 (2) Tijs Broeke 

5 (2) David Andrew Graves, Alderman 

8 (2) Wendy Mead, O.B.E. 

8 (2) Tom Sleigh, Deputy 

4 (1) Sir William Anthony Bowater Russell, Alderman 

1 (1) Irem Yerdelen 

Together with the Members and ex-officio Members referred to in paragraph 1 above, and:- 

Stephen Bediako )   

Russ Carr                    )   

 

Up to nine non-Common Council Members appointed by 
the Board 

Zulum Elumogo )  

Gerard Grech               )  

Lucy Musgrave )  

Mark Page  )  

Professor Jane Roscoe )  

Dr Jens Riegelsberger )  

Vacancy  )  

 
4. Terms of Reference 

To be responsible for:- 
 

(a)  the strategic direction, management, operation and maintenance of the Barbican Centre, having determined the 

general principles and financial targets within which the Centre will operate;  

 

(b) the appointment of the Managing Director of the Barbican Centre;  

 

(c) the Centre’s contribution to the City of London Corporation’s key policy priority, ‘Increasing the impact of the City’s 

cultural and heritage offer on the life of London and the nation’, viz.:- 

 

i) the provision of world-class arts and learning by the Centre for the education, enlightenment and entertainment of 

all who visit it, particularly through the delivery of its creative and cultural learning programmes; and 

ii) the provision of access to arts and learning beyond the Centre; 

(d) the creation of enterprise and income-generating support for the Centre. 

 
1   other than in specific cases approved by the Court of Common Council. Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

Page 8



BARBICAN CENTRE BOARD 
 

Thursday, 17 February 2022  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Barbican Centre Board held at Committee Rooms, 2nd 
Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 17 February 2022 at 8.30 am 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Tom Sleigh (Chair) 
Deputy Randall Anderson 
Farmida Bi (External Member) 
Russ Carr (External Member) 
Gerard Grech (External Member) 
Vivienne Littlechild 
 

Mark Page (External Member) 
Jens Riegelsberger (External Member) 
Jane Roscoe (External Member) 
Alderman Sir William Russell 
Jenny Waldman (External Member) 
 

 
In Attendance 
  
 
Officers: 
Ben Dunleavy - Town Clerk's Department 

Sandeep Dwesar - Barbican Centre 

Will Gompertz - Barbican Centre 

Gemma Stokley - Town Clerk's Department 

Natasha Harris - Barbican Centre 

Jonathon Poyner - Guildhall School of Music and Drama and 
Barbican Centre 

Sarah Wall - Barbican Centre 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies for absence were received from the Deputy Chairmen, Anne 
Fairweather, David Graves, Wendy Hyde, Wendy Mead and Graham Packham. 
 
The Chair welcomed the new CEO of the Barbican Centre, Claire Spencer. The 
new CEO introduced herself and took questions from Board members. 
 
The Chair announced that this was the last meeting for Vivienne Littlechild, who 
was standing down from the Court of Common Council in March, and for Jenny 
Waldman, whose term as External Member was ending. He thanked both for 
their commitment and contributions to the work of the Board.  
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were none. 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



3. MINUTES  
The public minutes and non-public summary of the Barbican Centre Board 
meeting held on 19 January 2022 were received. 
 

4. ANNUAL REVIEW OF TERMS OF REFERENCE  
The Board received a report of the Town Clerk relative to the Board’s Terms of 
Reference. 
 
A Member referred to the term (b) (that the Board is responsible for the 
‘appointment of the Managing Director of the Barbican Centre’ and expressed 
their disappointment that the press releases regarding the appointment of the 
new CEO, which had been circulated to Members prior to the meeting, only 
referenced the City of London Corporation’s involvement in the recruitment 
process and did not mention the Barbican Centre Board. They felt that this was 
a significant omission, as the Barbican Centre sometimes faced fundraising 
issues due to a perception that it was sufficiently resourced by the City 
Corporation. The Chair acknowledged this had been an omission. 
 

5. MANAGEMENT REPORT BY THE CENTRE'S DIRECTORS  
Members received a report of the Interim Managing Directors providing an 
update of the Barbican Centre. 
 

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were no questions. 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was no other business.  
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  
 
 

9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the Barbican Centre Board meeting held on 19 
January 2022 were received.  
 

10. BARBICAN TRANSFORMATION  
 
a. Culture Change - EDI update paper  
 
Members received a presentation from the Joint Interim Managing Director 
providing an update on Culture Change at the Barbican. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



11. BARBICAN FIRE SAFETY AND BARBICAN/GSMD CONFINED SPACES  
Members received a joint report of the Managing Director of the Barbican 
Centre, Principal of GSMD and the City Surveyor relative to the Barbican Fire 
Safety and Barbican/GSMD Confined Spaces. 
 

12. BOARD MEMBER RECRUITMENT  
Members received an update from the Joint Interim Managing Director on the 
appointment of two new external Board members. 
 

13. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were none. 
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was no other business. 
 

 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.29. 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Ben Dunleavy 
ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Committees: 
Barbican Centre Board  

Date: 
18 May 2022  

Subject: Appointment of Sub-Committees 2021/22 Public 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? 

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding? N/A 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Town Clerk  For Decision 

Report author: Ben Dunleavy,  
Town Clerk’s Department 

 
Summary 

 
The purpose of this report is to consider the appointment of the Barbican Centre 
Board’s Sub-Committees and to approve their compositions and Terms of Reference. 
 
The Board is responsible for appointing representatives on to the following Sub-
Committees:- 

• Finance and Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board  

• Nominations, Effectiveness & Inclusion Committee of the Barbican 
Centre Board  

 
A revision to the Terms of Reference of the current Nominations, Effectiveness & 
Inclusion Committee is being proposed to give that Committee oversight of the Arts 
Council England Funding agreement with the Barbican Centre. If the 
recommendations of the ACE Arrangements report (Item x of this agenda) are 
approved, the Terms of Reference and composition as outlined below will be 
amended slightly. If the recommendations are not approved, the original Terms of 
Reference and Composition of the Sub Committees will stand (paras 9 - 12).  
 
Recommendations: 
Members are asked to: 

• Approve the Terms of Reference of the Board’s Sub-Committees; 

• Approve the Composition of the Board’s Sub-Committees;  

• Appoint the Membership to the Sub-Committees for the year ensuing.  

 
  

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Main Report 
 

Background 

1. Each year, the Board is asked to consider the appointment of its Sub-
Committees, approve their compositions and their Terms of Reference. 
Accordingly, this report sets out the details of each of those Sub-Committees 
below. 
 
Current Finance and Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

2. In July 2020, the Finance and Risk Committees were merged to form the 
Finance and Risk Committee due to the overlap in topics and issues at 
meetings and an almost identical membership. This merger was also 
considered to be in line with the City Corporation’s move to reduce the high 
number of Committees.  
 

3. The Committees terms of reference were changed in May 2021 to reinforce its 
delegated powers to act on the Board’s behalf. 

 
4. The current Finance and Risk Committee terms of reference are as follows:- 

 

• To review all financial matters with delegated power to act; 

• To consider the business plan and budget prior to submission to the Board; 

• To review all capital cap and premises matters with delegated power to act;  

• To review any matters that may affect the finances of the Barbican Centre, 
reporting to the Board if the annual revenue is expected to vary by +/- 10% or 
the annual funding requirement from the Corporation is expected to vary by 
+/- £1 million  

• To consider corrective measures proposed by Barbican Centre management 
to address material budget variances;  

• To review risk management and consider periodic assessment of the 
adequacy of internal controls and financial best practices; and  

• To review the Barbican Centre’s Risk Register every six months, and make 
recommendations to the Barbican Board. 
 

5. The membership of the Finance and Risk Committee for 2021/22 was: 
 

Tijs Broeke (Chair) Anne Fairweather 

Deputy Tom Sleigh (Deputy Chair) Robert Glick 

Randall Anderson Deputy Wendy Hyde 

Russ Carr Alderman David Graves 

 
6. The composition of the Finance and Risk Committee is as follows:-  
 

Chairman of the Board 
Deputy Chairman of the Board 
City of London Finance Committee Representative 
The Chairman plus one additional representative of the Barbican Centre Trust 
Up to four other Board Members*   
 

Page 14



 *There is a requirement for City of London Members (including the three ex-
 officio positions above) to have a majority on the Sub-Committee. 
 
7. The quorum is any three Committee Members.   
 
8. Board Members are invited to express their interest in serving on the Finance 

and Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board, which has four vacancies. 
 

Current Nominations, Effectiveness & Inclusion Committee of the 
Barbican Centre Board 

9. The Nominations, Effectiveness & Inclusion (NEI) Committee terms of reference 
are as follows:- 

 

• To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of all external 
Members to the Board; 

• To undertake Skills Audits of the Board periodically, to inform the appointment 
of external Members to the Board and Board effectiveness; and 

• To consider the most appropriate way to recruit external Members to the Board, 
including the placing of advertisements or the use of personal contacts. 

 
10. The Committee has advisory powers only and will make recommendations to the 

Board. 
 
11. The membership of the NEI Committee for 2020/2021 was: 
 

Deputy Tom Sleigh (Chair) Zulum Elumogo 

Stephen Bediako (Deputy Chair) Mark Page 

Randall Anderson Jens Riegelsberger 

Tijs Broeke Jane Roscoe 

 
 

12. The composition of the NEI Committee is currently as follows:- 
 

Chairman of the Board 
Deputy Chairman of the Board 
Up to four other Board Members* 
 

 *At least one external Member must sit on this Committee and City of London 
 Members must be in the majority.   
 

Revised Terms of Reference and Composition for the Nominations, 
Effectiveness & Inclusion Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

13. Members will note that the report at item [x] on the agenda proposes a change 
to the NEI Committee terms of reference and its composition, in line with 
recommendations from Arts Council England. If that proposal is agreed by 
Members, the terms of reference and composition for the NEI Committee will 
be subsequently amended. If the proposal is not agreed, there will be no 
change from the terms of reference and composition presented here. 

 

Ben Dunleavy 

Page 15



Governance Officer, Town Clerk’s Department 
E: ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk   

Page 16

mailto:ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk


 

Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Barbican Centre Board 18 May 2022 
 

Subject: Management Report by the Barbican's 
Directors  
 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

1,2,3,4,5,7,8,9,10,12 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? n/a 

What is the source of Funding? n/a 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

n/a 

Report of: Chief Operating & Financial Officer  
 

For Decision 

Report authors: Directors, Barbican Centre  
 

 
 

Summary 
 

• The Management Report comprises current updates under six sections 
authored by Barbican Directors.  

• Updates are under the headlines of: 

o Interim Managing Director Update 

o Programming, Marketing and Communications 

o Creative Learning  

o Operations and Buildings  

o Business and Commercial 

o Development.  

 
Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to: 

• Endorse Management’s approach to the future activities of the Centre. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



Main Report 
 

 

  

1. REPORT:  JOINT INTERIM MANAGING DIRECTORS’ UPDATE 

 

 
Since our previous report, and during the last quarter in particular, activity across all areas 
has picked up. Attendance at all our venues has been good, demand for business events 
has been strong and business reaching pre-pandemic levels. With busy bars, catering and 
retail, there is a real energy in our public spaces with the quality of our programming, as 
this report sets out, has been at the vanguard in bringing a real buzz to the Centre. With 
the consequent increase in income, our year end financials are significantly better than 
previously reported, as well as our budget for the year – set out in the business review in 
your Board papers.  
 
Programming work and managing activity during the pandemic has been exceptionally 
challenging as the situation continued to change over the last two years with new variants 
of Covid-19, unexpected lockdowns, and changes to restrictions. The City’s support over 
the last two years has been crucial in enabling us to deliver our plans, reaching where we 
are today. By necessity, our budgeting had to be cautious as we adapted to the changing 
environment.           
 
As the Barbican opens up to pre-pandemic levels of activity, we welcome the appointment 
of Allies and Morrison with Asif Khan Studio as our design partners for the Barbican 
Renewal project. The importance of this project to the Barbican as a world leading arts 
institution cannot be overstated. This exciting project will determine much of what we do in 
the coming years, which, crucially, places sustainability at its centre. 
 
Above all, our work on EDI progresses with a full update provided at this meeting. This 
work, is and has to be, central to everything we do, influencing our creative vision, the 
renewal project and above all helping to deliver a more inclusive organisation.  
 
This is a rich, challenging and exciting agenda and we welcome our new CEO, Claire 
Spencer, as she takes the helm to lead this programme of change.  
       
 

Page 18



 

2. REPORT:  PROGRAMMING, MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

In March we celebrated our 40th birthday with a wonderful selection of cross-arts events 
around the Centre.  The birthday was reported on in number of outlets including The 
Guardian, BBC Radio 3’s Music Matters and In Tune, BBC Radio London’s Robert Elms 
programme, FAD Magazine and the Evening Standard.  
 
Postwar Modern: New Art in Britain, 1945–1965 opened to considerable critical acclaim 
in Barbican Art Gallery during the anniversary week on 3 March and attendance figures 
are healthy.  The exhibition is accompanied by a residency by associate artist Abbas 
Zahedi. In our Visual Arts partnership programme, Michael Clark opened at the V&A 
Dundee on 5 March, and Noguchi opened at the Museum Ludwig in Cologne on 26 
March – both venues are reporting a very positive response. 
 
Music also contributed extensively to the 40th anniversary programming with 
performances from the LSO, BBC SO and Britten Sinfonia; the Chris Difford-curated 
Songs in the Key of London; an 8-hour long piano project The Future is Female in the 
Conservatory. During April, outstanding reviews were received for Damon Albarn, Father 
John Misty and Hamza Namira in contemporary, and the Czech Philharmonic, Les Arts 
Florissants with William Christie, Jonas Kaufman and Diana Damrau, and Joyce 
DiDonato in classical.  
 
In the Theatre, Blanca Li’s VR experience Le Bal was a hot ticket and will be returning 
for a further two-week run-in May (already sold out!)  We welcomed celebrated South 
African artist William Kentridge and his company to our main stage for the first time with 
a double bill of film, music and theatre entitled Sibyl.   Ivo van Hove’s company ITA will 
present the UK premiere of Age of Rage, and UK based company Gecko will return with 
The Wedding. Anything Goes will return this summer, this time with an all-British 
cast.  Kathleen Marshall was just awarded the Olivier for Best Theatre Choreography. 
 
Cinema’s major film programme Homeland: Films by Australian First Nations directors 
took place in February and was a celebrated highlight of the UK/Australia 2021/22 
season.  In March, Barbican Cinema presented Other Modernisms, Other Futures: 
Global Art Cinema, a season which looked at the period between 1960-80 featuring six 
films made by modernist directors from across the world. March also saw the return of 
Human Rights Watch Film Festival to our venues with 3 successful in-venue screenings 
and in April we relaunched our Silent Film and Live Music strand with The Fall of the 
House of Usher. 
 
The Communities and Neighbourhoods team are now working on applications for the 
latest round of The Imagine Fund. Following a series of co-design sessions with 
grantees from last year’s pilot fund, two different funding opportunities are now available. 
The Seed Fund offers £500 to test a new idea in the community. The Project Grant is a 
larger grant of £2000 for a bigger idea or project. 
 
BIE’s AI: More Than Human exhibition continues its run at the Guangdong Science 
Centre, China. The exhibition will close in June and move to Afundación A Coruña for an 
autumn run in Spain. Game On continues to increase visitorship at the Groninger Forum 
after a lockdown over Christmas and January. The Virtual Realms exhibition opened at 
the Western Australian Museum Boola Bardip in Perth on the 26 March.  During April, 

Page 19



the team installed the new Our Time On Earth exhibition in the Curve Gallery, across the 
Foyers and in the Pit Theatre, ready to open on 5 May.  
 
Update on Digital  
The Visual Arts team has produced a wide range of digital content to supplement and 
support the Postwar Modern exhibition.  Among the pieces produced was a video 
introduction to the exhibition, a feature on four of the artists from the show, a mix of early 
experimental pop and electronic music from the period with record label Death is not the 
End and an animated video of activities for young people. 
  
During March and April, Barbican Cinema celebrated the films of Ryusuke Hamaguchi 
on the Cinema on Demand platform. Both Wheel of Fortune and Fantasy and the 
celebrated and Academy Award winning Drive My Car played to solid viewing figures as 
the Cinema department takes stock and makes plans for the near and medium term for 
Cinema on Demand. 
 
Theatre presented a sold out Pit Party: Transpose JOY, featuring 3 exciting transgender 
artists.  The show was filmed and will be made freely available on our website Read, 
Watch, Listen next month. 

 
Music’s Live from the Barbican streams over the period have included the BBC 
Symphony performing Frank Zappa, Nonclassical’s Listening to Place and a 
performance by jazz/electronica band GoGo Penguin. 
 
Following the success of their event Can we be Artists? Back in November, Community 
Collaborator Headway East London invite us to keep the conversation going with a new 
blog and new guest episode as part of the Communities & Neighbourhood’s Nothing 
Concrete podcast. 
 
Future Planning 
Carolee Schneemann: Body Politics opens on 8 September in the main gallery, and our 
next Curve Commission from Soheila Sokhanvari will open on 7 October.  We are 
currently in discussion with MAPFRE in Barcelona about potentially partnering with them 
to bring an exhibition by Carrie Mae Weems to Barbican in Summer 2023. For the 
Curve, in Spring 2023 we will be presenting an architectural intervention.  
 
Our Music Autumn / Winter 2022/23 programme was launched on 30 March, with 
highlights including residencies from the Australian Chamber Orchestra and Royal 
Concertgebouw Orchestra, the Barbican recital debut of Allan Clayton, Netia Jones’ 
immersive theatrical project The Anatomy of Melancholy, a performance by Yossou 
N’Dour and the return of the Darbar Festival. 
 
Late last month the RSC launched the title of their winter show at the Barbican – not a 
Shakespeare this time, but a children’s production based on the much-loved family 
animation film My Neighbour Totoro in association with Japan’s Studio Ghibli running 
from September through to mid-January 2023.   In June we will launch our Autumn 2022 
full Pit season.   Plans are well underway for our programme for both the Theatre and Pit 
spaces in 2023 and we will announce this in October. 
  
May will see the call out for our Emerging Film Curator’s Lab, offering budding curatorial 
talent the chance to learn from the Barbican Cinema team and develop their events 
during sessions in June, before bringing them to our audiences in screenings in Autumn 

Page 20

https://sites.barbican.org.uk/headwayeastlondon/?_ga=2.26023038.231263658.1650874615-1233222070.1646050028
https://sites.barbican.org.uk/headwayeastlondon/?_ga=2.26023038.231263658.1650874615-1233222070.1646050028
https://www.barbican.org.uk/read-watch-listen/can-we-be-artists
https://www.barbican.org.uk/read-watch-listen/can-we-be-artists
https://www.barbican.org.uk/read-watch-listen/nothing-concrete-can-we-be-artists


 

  

and Winter 2022.  The Outdoor Cinema cross-arts programme is being finalised for 
August, going on sale in May to an increased capacity of 600 for each of the six 
screenings. 
 
The BIE team is collaborating with the GLA on a 1-day conference during London 
Climate Action Week on 1 July and are in the early stages of planning their summer 
2024 exhibition under the working title Fundamentals of Music.  
 
Neighbourhoods and Communities’ involvement in ACE’s Climate Action Accelerator 
Programme has been extended by a year, and work will continue with peers from 10 
national organisations on developing the Creative Neighbourhoods / Regenerative 
Design work, which was recently featured as one of the main case studies in ACE’s 
Environmental Sustainability Report. 
 
 

Page 21

http://juliesbicycle.com/resource/arts-council-england-environmental-sustainability-report-2020-2021/
http://juliesbicycle.com/resource/arts-council-england-environmental-sustainability-report-2020-2021/


 

 
  

3. REPORT:  CREATIVE LEARNING 
  

National Open Youth Orchestra Debut Concert 
The National Open Youth Orchestra (NOYO) is a world first; an ambitious orchestra 
launched in 2018 to give some of the UK’s most talented young disabled musicians a 
progression route. It promotes musical excellence, supporting 11-25 year-old disabled 
and non-disabled musicians to rehearse and perform together as members of a 
pioneering inclusive ensemble. Some of the NOYO musicians play acoustic instruments; 
others, electronic instruments like the Clarion, which can be played with any movement 
of the body including the eyes. NOYO has training centres in four locations and the 
Barbican, in partnership with the Guildhall School of Music & Drama, runs the centre in 
London, providing regular 1:1 tuition and ensemble rehearsals for its players. On 24 
April, the ensemble came together for its debut public performance, following a week-
long residential. This had been planned for April 2020, but due to COVID-19, the concert 
was postponed. The wait has been long, but the outcome was exceptional, with a large 
audience in attendance at Milton Court Concert Hall, who gave the orchestra a standing 
ovation. The programme will continue in September with new members to be recruited. 
 
Barbican Backstage: School Music Tours 
In the early part of this year, Creative Learning collaborated with Music to develop an 
interactive backstage tour of the Concert Hall for secondary school students. On 9 March 
we delivered a pilot with Sydney Russell School for 19 students and 3 staff, to some 
excellent feedback. As part of the tour, students meet staff from across the Music team, 
experiencing a backstage tour before taking part in short workshops exploring stage 
management, how to film live streaming events and how to do a sound check on the Hall 
stage.The tour finishes with a lighting demonstration and Q&A about career paths and 
advice on how to work in the arts. George Monoux College will join us for the next tour 
this term, with two further dates booked in for July, and more to be scheduled for the 
autumn term.  
 
Barbican Young Film Programmers & Chronic Youth Festival  
The Chronic Youth Film Festival was back this year with a bang, over the weekend of 
12-13 March. This year, Barbican Young Film Programmers alumni from the years 
disrupted by Covid-19 were invited back to curate a fully in-venue festival. The group, 
made up of young people under 25 years old, programmed and delivered a series of 
screenings and talks looking at what ‘Home’ means to those facing adversity around the 
world. The selection included films from Brazil, the Dominican Republic, Spain and the 
UK. The group wrote marketing copy and programme notes, working closely with 
Marketing on the look and feel of the campaign, and hosted on-stage Q&As. 475 people 
attended the festival across the weekend.  
 
Barbican Box 
Barbican Box Music kicks off at the end of April, and will be delivered across 10 schools 
in east London in the summer term. The theme of the Box is empowerment, and a 
number of artists from the contemporary Music programme have contributed to its 
contents 

Page 22



 

4. REPORT:  OPERATIONS & BUILDINGS  
 

Purpose: Create an environment that enables and inspires others to achieve their 
best. To be achieved through: 
Plan: Providing services that are 1. efficient, 2. compliant, and 3. appropriate. 
Priorities: Life-critical, business-critical, other. 
 
General Update: Our buildings remain safe and compliant. We have continued the 
momentum with projects and training, and to work on audits to ensure a backstop to 
the past and to assist us review our priorities for the future.  
 
Operations: Our investment in training during Covid and since has led to a circa12% 
increase in our customer-satisfaction survey results, and a circa14% improvement in 
our CTSA and security assessment scores. This demonstrates the benefit and value of 
the City’s approach and support during the pandemic, for which we are most grateful. 
Members are asked to review risk H&S 002 (terrorism / major incident); a summary 
report will be brought to Finance and Risk Committee, outlining potential next steps. 
 
Buildings: As agreed with Board, we will continue to maintain momentum via CWP 
and Cap, as we move into the scoping discussions for Barbican Renewal. This coming 
twelve months will see the appointment of the consultants plus the establishment of 
staff and worker project groups. We will ensure that the experience gained by the team 
over the past five years of change and investment is reflected and prioritised in 
Barbican Renewal.   
 
Risk, Audits and KPIs: We thank colleagues in the City’s audit team, who have 
worked with us throughout the pandemic. Audit results confirm the benefits of the City’s 
investment in our buildings and people during the pandemic (Security – Green; UUK – 
Green; FM – Amber). The fire audit is now complete and is Amber. The audit has 
highlighted the benefits of moving to the City contracts, and the need to review how we 
get timely and accurate information from contractors. The following KPIs will be brought 
to Finance and Risk in July and to each Finance and Risk Committee thereafter. We 
will review and adjust as we progress on our journey of continual improvement. 
 

No: Pla

n 

Area KPI Target 2022/23 

1 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

Finance See Finance Report See Finance Report 

2 Environme

nt 

Carbon Reduction (Scope 1 

& 2) 

10% reduction against the 2018/19 

baseline of 3,736 tonnes CO2e 

3 CAP / 

CWP 

Gateway / works progressed 85% complete against GW 

4 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

t Risk  
Key policies reviewed and in 

date 

85% complete against cycle 

5 Safety Accidents / incidents closed 

against register 

85% closed within 28 days 

6 Safety RIDDOR Accidents Report as and when they occur 

7 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

Quality Mystery-shopper survey 85% on mystery-shopper survey 

8 Quality Staff / worker survey  TBC 

Page 23



 

 

  

 
Staff and Workers (Casuals): In addition to our EDI work, aligned with that of the City, 
we have continued to roll out training as noted above to give a consistent standard and 
one-team approach across the organisation, including staff, casual workers and 
contractors. The roll-out of the new PARiM (shift-booking) system has been very well 
received, giving greater transparency as to the availability and allocation of shifts 
across the organisation. Our aim is to have one team, with CPD opportunities and a 
fairer distribution of shifts. 
 
Next Steps and Horizon: Investments in our assets and people will continue as 
regards projects and training. Covid is business-as-usual, though we remain flexible 
and continue to plan for the winter months. We continue to work towards reviewing our 
costs and removing Covid-related costs as staff and audiences settle into the new 
norm. Our focus will shift towards Barbican Renewal, ensuring that we influence the 
design so as to give a building that is efficient to run, simple to operate, safe to visit, 
and fit for many future generations – a worthy 40th birthday present for the Barbican. 

 

Page 24



 

 

5. REPORT: BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL 
 

Business Events:  Business for the last two quarters has been back to pre-pandemic 
levels for the Business Events team and has resulted in achieving 24% over the original 
income budget target and 16% over the stretch target.   
 
Along with repeat and new corporate clients, the regular traffic of graduations taking 
place in person due to pent up demand, contributed to the above average numbers of 
event attendees to the Centre in the last two quarters of the year. In-conversation events 
with key public figures such as Tim Peake have seen Business Events alone bring in 
over 90,000 visitors to the Centre, with much of that focused in a window of 6 months, 
which normally would have been delivered over the course of a full year. 
 
Filming and photoshoots continue to be a focus as an income stream with a dedicated 
sales person at the helm driving this sector. Finally, we were delighted to have won the 
Ethical, Responsible and Sustainable Tourism Award at the London Tourism Awards 
2022 in March, recognising our sustainability efforts across the organisation. This 
endorsement is so important as we continue working towards our overall aim to reach 
net zero by 2027.  
   
Catering & Bars: Benugo and Searcys are both exceeding budget revenue, with 
Benugo's operations running at around 80% of pre-pandemic levels. All venues are now 
open, albeit with some reduced trading hours until the summer, when we expect to be 
trading well during the run of Anything Goes and BIE's Our Time on Earth. 
 
In Barbican Bars, the Martini Bar scored 135/135 for customer service in the last mystery 
shopper report.  Revenues in the performance bars are behind expectations, but 
margins and controls remain well controlled and income to Barbican is being maximised.  
  
The car parks are picking up as we start to see workers return to offices in the City, and 
we ended the year exceeding budget on private, corporate season tickets as well as 
drive-up ticket sales.   
  
Retail: The Gallery Shop has been performing steadily during the Post War Modern 
exhibition, unfortunately issues with the catalogue meant we missed out on physical 
sales for the first four weeks.  During this time online pre-orders were positive although 
did not make up for lost sales on the shop floor.  Product Development and buying has 
begun for the next Gallery Exhibition opening in September.   
 
The Foyer Shop has also enjoyed steady trade and some very busy weekends, with 
customers shopping a wide range of price points and across the full range.  The shop 
will be re-merchandised ahead of the Our Time on Earth exhibition to showcase a 
selection of sustainable products, including a capsule clothing collection which has been 
made from curtain material used in the How We Live Now installation.  The vacant Retail 
Buying Manager position has now been filled, and will start in mid June.  The team are 
preparing for a busy summer with the BIE exhibition, Anything Goes in the Theatre and 
the Gallery exhibition all generating extra footfall through the Centre which retail benefits 
from. 
 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

6. REPORT: DEVELOPMENT  
 

Our Trust and Grants team report recent successful applications with the Art Mentor 
Foundation Lucerne and Helen Frankenthaler Foundation towards Carolee 
Schneemann, the Dutch and Norwegian Embassies and Finnish and Italian Cultural 
Institutes towards Our Time on Earth, and the French Institute towards Le Bal de Paris. 
Additionally, the team has been preparing major reports to secure the final instalments of 
their multi-year grant and supporting the application process for Barbican’s Arts Council 
England National Portfolio proposal for 2023-26. 
 
The Individual Giving team continue to recruit new Patrons onto the programme. Since 
the last report, there have been 3 renewals (1 Premier Patron, 2 Patrons), one Premier 
Patron pledge and a new gift to support Barbican Young Poets from an individual 
supporter. The team secured a major gift to support the classical music programme, and 
the development of Young Barbican. The team have hosted various successful 
supporter stewardship events around Barbican programming including the new Post War 
Modern exhibition.  
 
The team have secured sponsorships from Pinsent Masons (a current Corporate 
Member) and Meta for Our Time on Earth. A sponsorship conversation with a fashion 
brand is in final discussions for Carolee Schneemann. The team hosted a successful 
Private View for Corporate Members and Prospects for Postwar Modern, and a 
corporate cultivation event in coordination with the Barbican Centre Trust Chair Farmida 
Bi CBE, with some useful conversations following both events.  
 
On 3 March, we hosted an event to celebrate the Barbicans 40th anniversary with Will 
Gompertz and key supporters and stakeholders. A number of positive outcomes were 
born out of the evening, including enthusiastic feedback to future plans and introductions 
to help with the scoping work  
 
Recruitment to expand the Barbican Centre Trust is also underway. 
 
 

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Order of the Court
	6 Minutes
	7 Appointment of Sub-Committees 2022/23
	9 Management Report by the Centre's Directors
	14 Non-Public Board Minutes
	15 Artistic Programming Strategy Update
	16 Development Update
	17 Barbican Centre - Arts Council England, Barbican National Portfolio Extension Year 2022/23 and 2023-26 application.
	18 EDI and HR Audit Update
	Appendix 1 - Project Tracker

	19 Barbican Business Plan Update
	Appendix 1 - Details of Achievements

	20 Barbican Business Review
	21 Barbican Renewal - update
	22 Customer Satisfaction Measurement - Mystery Shopper Summary

